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8.  AMENDMENT OF SOLICITATION 
The solicitation identified in 7A above is amended as set forth in Item 9. 
The due date and time specified for receipt of offers/bids                 is extended,     X       is not extended. 
Contractor must acknowledge receipt of this amendment prior to the due date and time specified in the solicitation or as amended, by 
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9. DESCRIPTION OF AMENDMENT (Use additional pages if required) 

 
The RFP is amended to correct the numbering in Section C, 2.0 – CATEGORIES AND CATEGORY SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS, 
beginning on page 24: 
 

2.1 change to 2.2 for Category 2 – Data Storage Devices and Systems 
2.2 change to 2.3 for Category 3 – Server Class Hardware/ Equipment and Virtual Computing 
2.3 change to 2.4 for Category 4 – Network Hardware 
2.4 change to 2.5 for Category 5 – Computer Hardware Peripherals 

 
This amendment also provides answers to questions received to date, as per the attached 3 pages. 
 
Except as provided herein, all terms and conditions of the document referenced in Item 7A, including previous amendments, if any, shall 
remain in full force and effect.  
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Description of Amendment (Continued): 
 
MEEC IT Hardware RFP 972016 
Amendment 1 – Questions (Q) and Answers (A) 
 
1. Q:  This question is to obtain clarification regarding the use of the Technical Proposal Response 

Submission Matrix; Section C – Specifications and Requirements.  Does the responder submit both a 
written response to the different items in Section C, items 1-7 within the technical response and/or 
complete the area in the Vendor Response cell in the Matrix document (in other words complete both 
a written response and complete the cell within the Matrix)?  Or does the responder use the Matrix as 
a guide to make sure they have responses to each item within the section?  Or does the responder 
use the Vendor Response cell within the Matrix to indicate where, in the responder’s response 
document, the response actually resides inside of the responders document? 
 
A:  In response to the questions in item 1. above, page 35 of the RFP, Section 8.0 – Technical 
Proposal Response Submission Matrix, the term “Respondent Comments” is corrected to “VENDOR 
RESPONSE.” 
 
Proposers are to submit responses directly into Section C’s Matrix in the “VENDOR RESPONSE” 
cell.  The intention is not to have a separate narrative proposal document in addition to the completed 
Section C Matrix.   Rather, the Proposal shall consist of the completed VENDOR RESPONSE in the 
Matrix followed by attachments as needed.  As noted in Section 8.0 on page 35 of the RFP, it is 
acceptable to state in the VENDOR RESPONSE cell for some items “See Attached.”  For example, in 
meeting the “M” for mandatory requirement of an Executive / Management Summary of what your 
firm is proposing for MEEC in response to this RFP, it is acceptable to put “See Attached” in the 
VENDOR RESPONSE cell in the Matrix and include a clearly marked attachment that is an executive 
summary.  Clearly marked means the attachment should be marked with “Requirement Item Number 
Section A-2, M, 1.a” for this brief synopses.  As it is the first response required in the Matrix, that 
attachment would be the first attachment to directly follow the completed Matrix.  Another “See 
Attached” example would be to attach required Resumes in Requirement Item No. 1.3.6. 

Using the Matrix is required for responding to the RFP requirements and therefore it is more than a 
guide.  The Matrix specifies the requirement priority by code and it provides instructions on the 
VENDOR RESPONSE required.  For example, Requirement Item No. 1.12 on Records and Records 
Retention is a mandatory requirement that requires the Contractor to confirm its agreement to this 
requirement in the VENDOR RESPONSE. 

The Matrix also serves as a checklist.  It provides the information and the format needed as a cross-
reference to the requirements as stated in Section C items 1-7.  For example, for Requirement Item 
No. 1.2 – an overview of the proposer’s firm/company, the Response Checklist cell notes that this 
response may be up to one page in length. 

2. Q:  This question is to obtain clarification on the submission of a response for each manufacture it will 
be providing in each category; Section C – Specifications and Requirements.  It is noted in 1.1 that “It 
is not necessary to submit a separate technical proposal for each manufacturer represented.”  For 
clarification, the responder is to state the brand name(s) of each manufacturer, provide firm overview, 
capabilities 1.3 – 1.14, etc. for each category in which it will be offering?  For instance, an offeror has 
three (3) brands/ manufacturers it wants to propose in Category 4.  The offeror only needs to state 
those three (3) brands/ manufacturers and then only provide the firm overview, capabilities 1.3 – 1.14, 
etc. within the category (once). 
 
A:  Section C – Specifications and Requirements item 1.1 on page 18 of the RFP is deleted and its 
associated Requirement Item No. 1.1 in the Technical Proposal Response Submission Matrix on 
page 36 of the RFP is also deleted.  They are deleted as the information is already covered in the 
Categories and Category Specific Requirements Section 2 that starts on page 22 of the RFP.     
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To be clear, for response to the requirements in Section C – Specifications and Requirements 1.0 
General Mandatory Technical Requirements Including Base Warranties by Category, vendors are to 
submit VENDOR RESPONSE directly in the Technical Proposal Response Submission Matrix for 
each applicable requirement in Requirement Item Nos. 1.2 through 1.14.  These Section 1.0 
requirements are overall to the proposal to be responded to once as opposed to multiple times by 
category.  For example, the 1.2 Firm Overview is submitted as one VENDOR RESPONSE for 
Requirement Item No. 1.2.  Note that for the Section 1 requirements, the only Requirement Item No. 
that is not applicable to all vendors is 1.13.2.  That is, Requirement Item No. 1.13.2 does not apply to 
a vendor unless they are proposing Category 5 Computer Hardware Peripherals.  
 
To be clear, the Categories and Category Specific requirements for VENDOR RESPONSE in the 
Technical Proposal Response Submission Matrix are Requirement Item Nos. 2.1 through 2.5.  Again, 
vendors are to submit VENDOR RESPONSE directly into the cells in the Technical Proposal 
Response Submission Matrix for each applicable requirement in Requirement Item Nos.  A vendor 
proposing only Category 4 must complete VENDOR RESPONSE in the Matrix for the two (2) M/I 
priority code items in Requirement Item No. 2.4 and may provide VENDOR RESPONSE to any of the 
additional four (4) desirable items designated as D/I priority code. 

 
3. Q:  This question is to obtain clarification on the use of References; Section C – Specifications and 

Requirements, 7.1 References.  Does the offeror/ responder only need to complete the reference 
document once and add that to the technical response or does the offeror/ responder need to 
complete the reference document for each category in which they are submitting? 

A:  The reference requirement is overall as opposed to a Category by Category requirement.  
Proposers are to submit their references using the Reference Form included in Section C 7.0 on 
Page 34 of the RFP.  Per Section 7.1 References, three (3) references are required where at least 
two (2) must be “active” (as opposed to expired) contracts.  In the Matrix Requirement Item No. 7.0, it 
is acceptable for vendors to state “See Attached” in the VENDOR RESPONSE and attach the 
Reference Form to include items 7.1.1, 7.1.2 and 7.1.3 for the required three (3) references. 

 
4. Q:  This question is to obtain clarification on the contents and order of presentation of Volume I – 

Technical Specifications & Business Requirements; Section M. Two Volume Proposal, 1. Volume I - 
Technical Specifications & Business Requirements.  It is stated that “Volume I must contain the 
following sections:” a. Executive / Management Summary and b. The Technical Proposal (and the 
associated documents). For Section C, to further clarify, the offeror/ responder only needs to submit 
the Category and include within that Category, state the brand(s)/manufacturer(s) and provide firm 
overview, capabilities 1.3 – 1.14, etc. 

I believe I am attempting to gain clarity on the answer to question #2.  I also want to confirm what the 
Technical Proposal must contain (p.11) and the order in which you would like to see it in our 
proposal.  Both are stated clearly in the RFP but the answer from question #2 might affect how we 
prepare our submission.  If the answer to question #2 is Yes ‘It is not necessary to submit a separate 
technical proposal for each manufacturer represented” then I believe I have a handle on what the 
Technical Proposal must contain and the order in which you would like to see it.  I guess this is not a 
question but a desire to confirm what I think I read. 

A:  See answer to Question 2 above. 

Page 11 of the RFP provides the content for what makes up the Technical Proposal.  It specifies 
what must be completed and/or signed on the: 

1. Solicitation/Contract Form Section A-1. 
2. Section G 5 - on page 47 of the RFP - Contractor’s name, title, address and contact info for any 

Notices associated with a resulting Award/Contract  
3. Section C – Matrix which includes the References  
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4. Affidavits and Certifications – These required documents for completion are in Section K of the 
RFP – Representations, Certifications and other Statements and are included in the Matrix where 
it is acceptable to note in the VENDOR RESPONSE cells of the Matrix “See Attached” and attach 
them after the Matrix. 

5. Q:  I noticed that some of the product lines we already have on contract are not on the RFP (Nimble, 
Isilon, Juniper, Wyse).  How do we address this so we keep them on contract? 

A:  Isilon (spelling corrected from Isolon in the RFP) and Nimble are listed under Category 2 (pg. 24) 
and Juniper is listed under Category 4 (pg. 28). 

Wyse is now owned by Dell.  Any Wyse equipment would be submitted in Categories proposed 
as Dell equipment.  For clarity, a contractor may specify Dell/Wyse in their proposal. 
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Description of Amendment (Continued): 
 
MEEC IT Hardware RFP 972016 
Amendment 2 – Questions (Q) and Answers (A) 
 
6. Q:  Requirement for Section C. Item 1.3.4 - The USM has stated that the offeror must provide a letter, 

certificate or other evidence that they (offeror) are a recognized and approved reseller of the hardware and 
associated software offered in their proposals. 
 
Does the required evidence need to originate from the manufacturer directly on their letter head or will a 
letter from a global distribution company confirming that the offeror is in good standing and authorized to 
sell a certain brand(s) suffice? 

A:  A letter from a global distribution company is acceptable.  The letter or certificate must be current 
and in force and effect.  If the Offeror proposes to resell multiple brands, they must provide a letter, 
certificate or other evidence that they are a recognized and approved reseller for each and every 
brand or manufacturer (peripheral devices excepted).  The USM reserves the right to contact any 
manufacturer to verify that the Offeror is authorized and approved by the manufacturer to resell the 
hardware and associated software.  If such authorization is denied, the Procurement Official may 
consider the Offeror’s proposal not susceptible of receiving an award, and may reject the Offeror’s 
proposal. 

7. Q:  Requirement for Section A-2, Items 3, 4 & 6 – Purpose, IDIQ Contracts & Scope of Award 

 
Does USM have a limited number of contractors that it desires to award a single product line?  For 
example, in Category 1: Desktop, Laptop and Portables, how many contractors will be awarded HP or 
Dell? 

A:  There is not a limited number of contractors desired for award of Category brand/manufacturer.   
The number of contractors that may be awarded HP or Dell for Category 1 is not set. 

8. Q:  Requirement for Section L, Item C. – Technical Evaluation 

 
Will USM be utilizing a point system for each of the 9 identified areas of evaluation criteria stated in this 
section?  If so, will the USM share the point system details?  If there is no point system, will USM state the 
proposed evaluation criteria details? 

 
A: No, a point system will not be utilized.  Adjectival ratings are determined in evaluating a proposal’s 
strengths and weaknesses in accordance with the 9 criteria in Section L listed in order of importance.   
 

9. Q:  Requirement for Section 2.1 Category 2 – Data Storage Devices and Systems 

 
Can the USM confirm the spelling of the Nexan product line?  It is believed that the intended product line is 
Nexsan. 
 

A:  Confirmed.  The RFP is updated to correct in Section 2.1 Category 2 – Data Storage Devices and 
Systems:  Nexan is changed to Nexsan. 

10. Q:  Requirement for Section Pricing Item 2 – ♣Note: Proposers may add one (1), and only one, “other” or 

additional brand or manufacturer in each category.  These additional brands are to be added in the 
worksheet boxes labeled with the Club symbol “♣” (at the end of each Brand column).  The corresponding 
Discount and Value Added Pricing should be listed with the proposed brand.  Acceptance of the brand will 
be subject to the decision of the evaluation committee, who may designate the brand as acceptable or 
reject the brand. 
 

If an additional brand is proposed, but rejected by the evaluation committee, would that rejection have 
a negative impact on our bid for other MFG’s within the same category? 
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A:  No. 

11. Q:  Requirement for Section A-2, Item 11 – Price Quotes 
 
The RFQ states that prices may not be adjusted nor additional fees charged if the MEEC participating 
institution pays by purchase order with Net 30 day payment terms, or if they pay by credit card.  
Credit card convenience fees are specifically prohibited under the contract for all MEEC participating 
institutions. 
 
Can the USM anticipate the percent of business that could be transacted via credit card under this 
contract? 
 
A:  MEEC does not have any historical reporting information on the percentage of credit card to other 
forms of payment. 
 

12. Q:  Because we are a manufacturer with several approved resellers, we were hoping to respond to 
this RFP and provide a shortlist of resellers either with our proposal or upon award. Is this possible?  
If so, how should we go about giving you this information? 

A:  No, this is not possible.  A vendor may respond as the manufacturer, however cannot then submit 
their own short list for resellers.  Resellers must submit their own Proposals to be evaluated for Award 
of a Contract under this RFP.   

13. Q:  Enterprise level solutions contractors provide services that are in demand by MEEC institutions.  
These enterprise level solutions providers don't necessarily provide category 1 and category 5 
products and therefore of they would not place in the top three performers in those categories (1 & 5).  
We would like to request that solutions contractors be evaluated individually in the categories they 
propose, or in categories 2,3 and 4 separately.  MEEC institutions need the services. 

A:  The following changes are made to the RFP relating to Solutions Contractors: 

Section A-2 – Background/Purpose, Instructions, Conditions and Notices to Contractors. A. 
Background & Purpose 

6. Scope of Award – Categories and Solutions Contractors Solutions Contractors (page 4 of the 
RFP):  The second sentence is deleted in its entirely and replaced with the following: 

To be eligible for a Solutions Contractor award, a contractor must be rated and ranked as one of 
the top contractors in at least two of the Categories excluding Category 5 that is not required for 
submission in order for a vendor to be a Solutions Contractor. 

 
 10. DEFINITIONS of Terms Used in this RFP – Solutions Contractor (page 6 of the RFP) 
 The first sentence is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 

 
A contractor must be rated and ranked as one of the top contractors in at least two of the 
Categories excluding Category 5 that is not required for submission in order for a vendor to be a 
Solutions Contractor. 
 

Section C – Specifications and Requirements 8.0 Technical Proposal Response Submission Matrix  
 

Requirement Item No. 2.0 Description/Requirements Heading (page 38 of the RFP)  
 The second sentence is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 
 

Solutions Contractors will be selected based on evaluation of firms that submit in at least two of 
the Categories excluding Category 5 
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Section L – Evaluation Factors for Award C. Technical Evaluation  
8.0 Solutions Contractors (page 83 of the RFP) 
The second sentence is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 
 

To be eligible for a Solutions Contractor award, a contractor must be rated and ranked as one of 
the top contractors in at least two of the Categories excluding Category 5 that is not required for 
submission in order for a vendor to be a Solutions Contractor. 

 
14. Q:  Value Added Pricing:  Is this meant to only mean "volume discount"?  Traditionally Value Added 

Programs are typically something where the reseller adds value through pre and post-sale services 
related to the hardware sale. 
A:  No, Value Added Pricing is not meant to only mean “volume discount.”  It may include a vendor’s 

pricing program that adds value for MEEC members that is not otherwise listed in this RFP.  

15.  Q:  Is the RFP for new product only or can a vendor offer refurbished product as well? 

A:  Revise Section C, paragraph 1.4 New and Unused Equipment to say, “All equipment purchased under 
this agreement shall be new and unused, unless a participating MEEC Institution issues a Task Order 
Request for Quotation (TORFQ) or Task Order Request for Proposal (TORFP) that specifically allows 
submission of offers that include used or refurbished equipment.  Used or refurbished equipment may not 
be substituted without the ordering institutions written approval.  As stated under the warranty sections, it 
is acceptable for replacement parts to be serviceably used, comparable in function and performance to 
the original part, and warranted for the remainder of the original warranty, or thirty days from the date of 
installation of the replacement part, whichever is longer. 
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Description of Amendment (Continued): 
 
MEEC IT Hardware RFP 972016 
Amendment 4 – Questions (Q) and Answers (A) 
 
 
67. Q:  Is there a ceiling/cap on the .5% fee per order or will the .5% fee be in effect for the entire amount 

with no cap? 

A: The surcharge will be under the full amount of orders placed to a Contractor under a newly awarded 

contract as a result of this RFP. 

68. Q:  To effectively prepare a compliant, technically sound response that offers the best value to 
MEEC, we respectfully request a 2-week submission deadline, or a deadline extension that MEEC 
deems appropriate. 

A:  The submission due date is not extended.  As noted at the pre-proposal conference and covered 
in Amendment 3, the requirement to keep to the schedule was covered and it was noted that vendors 
should not anticipate changes to the submission due date. 
 

69.  Q:  Please refer page 19 of the RFP, requirement 1.3.2, for contractors to provide a detailed plan of 
operations indicating their methodology to resell or distribute personal purchases for MEEC members’ 
Faculty, Staff, and Students.  Does this requirement only apply to Category 1, or are we required to 
provide this for Categories 2, 3, 4, and 5? 

A:  Requirement 1.3.2 on page 19 is a response required on capabilities of your firm as a general 

mandatory technical requirement overall as opposed to submission of a separate plan of operation for each 
category proposed.  MEEC’s intent for personal purchases is envisioned as primarily for Categories 1 and 
5, although the other Categories are not excluded.  If a vendor proposes for Categories 1 and 5, the overall 
plan of operation in supporting faculty, staff and students for personal purchases would need to include a 
vendor’s plan in supporting both Categories.  See also Amendment 3, Q. and A for # 55.  
 

70. Q:  Should the minimum discount off of SELP be just hardware and software or should it include the 
three years of support as required in the RFP? 

A:  The discount needs to include the base 3 year warranty.  See Q & A # 33. 

71. Q:  If a page limit has not been indicated but a response code of I or E are indicated, do you want that 
response within the grid only or is it acceptable to provide verbiage separately?  Two examples are 
2.1 Level A/B/C installation and 4.1 Access to New Technology. 

A:  The preference is concise response of information/explanation entered directly in the Matrix. 

72. Q:  In the event the contract opens up for new/additional equipment and/or refurbished equipment, 
how will the potential responder find out about the opening, and would the responder have the ability 
to jump onto the current contract, mid-term, in the newly added categories? 

A:  See Q & A # 25. 

73. Q:  Can a reseller of a product piggyback onto the contract with a vendor awarded onto MEEC vs 
bidding direct? 

A:  No, the intention is not piggybacking.  Vendors are to bid as prime contractors and any sub-
contractors must be identified with stated roles and responsibilities per Section C’s 1.3.1. 



3 

 

74.  Q:  I just want to let you know that the numbering in the matrix for Section 3.1, 3.2, and 3.3 does not 
match what’s in Page 31 of the RFP. 

In Page 31 of the RFP: 
Section 3.1 is for the MEEC Collective Purchase Reports 
Section 3.2 is for Distribution Report 
Section 3.3 is for Purchase Report 
 

However, in the Matrix: 
MEEC Collective Purchase Reports is listed as 3.3 
Distribution Report is listed as 3.1 
Purchase Report is listed as 3.2 
 

Could you please consider aligning the numbering in the Matrix with the listing in Page 31 of the 
RFP? 

 
A:  Yes, the Matrix Requirement Item Nos. 3.1, 3.2, and 3.3 (pg. 41) are revised as follows: 

3.1 MEEC Collective Purchase Report M/C   

3.2 Distribution Report M/C   

3.3 Purchase Reports M/C   

75. Q:  What exactly constitutes “ISO compliance” as stated for each category, how does this relate to 
being an ISO certified company, doesn’t that cover all we do/provide? 

A:  See Q & A #57. Amendment3. 

76. Q:  Category 3 - Virtual Computing Brands:  We would like to request that Nutanix be added to Virtual 
Computing Brands.  Nutanix is the largest Hyper-Converged manufacturer in world. 

A:  This vendor was added per Amendment 3.  See Q and A # 51. 

77. Date Due – We would like to deliver a concise, compliant, and detailed response; would the University of 
Maryland be willing to extend the due date of this RFP 972016? 

A:  See Q & A #68 above. 

78. Printer(s) - Is the End User able to provide any specs for the printer(s) they would like included? I.e. Color 
or Mono?  Approximate number of pages per month printed?  Print only or Print/Copy/Scan/Fax?  Wireless 
or wired? 

A:  No, individual printer specifications will not be provided. 
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Description of Amendment (Continued): 
 
MEEC IT Hardware RFP 972016 
Amendment 5 – Questions (Q) and Answers (A) 
 
 
79. Q:  Please clarify what constitutes an applicable purchase for inclusion in the 0.5% surcharge. This is 

a three-part question.  

1) Is any purchase of equipment listed on contract by a "MEEC member" included?  We have 
existing contracts to provide out-of-warranty maintenance, including parts, to MEEC members.  A 
surcharge has not been contemplated in these contracts. 

2) If in response to #1, you are limiting the surcharge to only sales quoted through the MEEC 
contract vehicle, does that include contract riders?  We have customers that issue their own 
contracts that ride MEEC and we quote under their contract. 

3) If in #2 you state that contracts that ride MEEC are applicable to the surcharge, what about 
purchases that already go through a chargeable procurement system?  We have some 
purchases from MEEC members that come through K12 Buy and which already have a 
surcharge of 1.5% for hardware and .75% for services.  Are these purchases also applicable to 
the MEEC surcharge? 

A:  1.    The surcharge will not apply to existing contracts to provide out-of-warranty maintenance.  
Any new equipment and services purchased through this new contract shall include the 
surcharge. 

2. The contracts are not available for non-MEEC entities to ride.  Member Institutions may have 
their own contracts under the MEEC contract terms and conditions, where the surcharge will 
apply. 

3. Yes, it applies. 

80. Q:  Discount Percentages – REF: Financial Proposal 
Comment: Upon reviewing the existing Approved Hardware Vendors on the MEEC website, a number 
of current vendors provide a range of “Discount from List Prices” for a single OEM under a single 
Group.  When completing the Financial Proposal response, how should bidders provide such a range 
of discounts?  In other words, if bidding desktop computers from HP at x% off list and HP laptop 
computers at y%, how should such a range (between x% and y%) be shown in the Financial 
Proposal? 

A:  List the minimum discount with additional discounting by product classes in the Value Added area.  
Do not provide a range. 

81. Q:  We intend to provide a discount range off of list price per vendor for each applicable product 
category. Is this acceptable? 

A:  See Q & A #80 above. 

82. Q:  For Category 2 - Data Storage Devices:  Infinidat and Pure Storage are two manufacturers that 
are widely used in the largest Maryland State Agencies and they are considered major 
manufacturers.  Would it be possible to add these to the manufacturer list for this category? 

A:  Yes.  Infinidat and Pure Storage are added to Section C, Category 2 & the Financial Proposal 
Pricing Form. 
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83. Q:  Thank you for the update.  This interesting decision as the current contract and the includes 
VMware, Citrix, Redhat and Oracle which are all softwares. 3 of which we work very closely with.  The 
feedback we have received from our customers it would be a lot easier to include Veeam on the 
contract for purchases.  It would take out the need for placing formal bids.  We that you please 
reevaluate your decision or help us gain a better way to serve both of our customers. 

A:  These brands are on the contract because they are specific to virtualization.  Other types of 
software will not be added as manufacturers/ brands. 

84. Q:  What is the desired process for reporting .5% funding stream?  Are the bi-annual funding stream 
transfers expected to be sent on alternating quarters, eg. Q2 & Q4 of the calendar year, or does 
MEEC have established dates that funds are going to be received? 

A:  This is answered in Section C, Reporting Requirements 3.0-3.4 of the RFP, starting on page 30 of 
the RFP. 

85. Q:  How will open returns and open AR effect the funding stream transfers Eg. If an agency has a 
return that hasn’t been credited back from the vendor, or open AR, will the respondent be expected to 
provide .5% stream to MEEC prior to resolution of outstanding debts? 

A:  No.  The surcharge will be disbursed once the revenue is received. 

86. Q:  Will participating institutions have leasing relationships that they would prefer respondent to use? 

A:  Possibly, this is at the discretion of the Member Institution. 

87. Q:  Will the respondent be permitted to provide brands that were not awarded to the respondent on 
an off-contract basis? Eg. Respondent is awarded HP desktops and it not awarded Belkin cables, but 
USM institution would prefer to have both lines ordered at one vendor. 

A:  No, vendors should only quote what they are awarded under the MEEC contract.  To add brands, 
see Q & A #25 in Amendment 3. 

88. Q:  Additional Manufacturers – REF: Section B – Pricing (Page 17) of the RFP. 
Question: The RFP states that “proposers may add one (1), and only one, ‘other’ or additional brand 
or manufacturer in each category.”  Upon reviewing the list of currently approved manufacturers, we 
believe there are categories where bidders could suggest more than one additional manufacturer that 
would be appropriate for the contract.  Therefore, would the agency allow bidders to add up to two (2) 
other manufacturers in each category? 

A:  No. 

89. Q:  Hardware versus Software – REF: Section 2.2 – Category 3 – Server Class Hardware/Equipment 
and Virtual Computing (Page 26) of the RFP. 
Question: In Section 2.2 of the RFP for Category 3 products, there is a table for “Acceptable Virtual 
Computing Hardware Brands.”  This table, however, includes software providers (Redhat, VMWare).  
Please confirm that the reference to hardware for these manufacturers is in error and that the agency 
accepts software from them. 

A:  Correct.  These are acceptable software brands required for virtual computing hardware. 
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90. Q:  Case study write ups - REF: Section 2.0 – Categories and Category Specific Requirements of the 
RFP 
Question: Bidders proposing Product Categories 2 through 4 are required to provide a case study of a 
completed installation for each category as part of the proposal.  If bidders anticipate utilizing partners 
for the installation and maintenance services, is it acceptable to provide as the case study details of a 
project completed by the partner organization? 

A:  Yes. 

91. Q:  Discount Percentages – REF: Financial Proposal 
Comment: Upon reviewing the existing Approved Hardware Vendors on the MEEC website, a number 
of current vendors provide a range of “Discount from List Prices” for a single OEM under a single 
Group.  When completing the Financial Proposal response, how should bidders provide such a range 
of discounts?  In other words, if bidding desktop computers from HP at x% off list and HP laptop 
computers at y%, how should such a range (between x% and y%) be shown in the Financial 
Proposal? 

A:  See Q & A #80 above. 

92. Q:  Current Members – REF: Contract Usage 
Question: The Current Members page on the MEEC website lists a number of organizations that are 
currently allowed to utilize the MEEC contract.  Are there any other organizations not listed on the 
website that are authorized to use the contract?  If so, can you please identify them? 

A:  No, the list is all MEEC Members in good standing that may utilize the contract. 

93. Q:  For the contract reference section (see example below), if using similar scope IDIQ contracts for 
any of these references, is the desire for the Client contact section to be an actual end client utilizing 
the contract vehicle or a contract administer of the overall IDIQ? 

7.1.1 CONTRACT REFERENCE 1 

Name of Client:  

Name of Contact:  

Address:  

Phone Number:  

E-Mail Address:  

Annual Dollar Value of Contract:  

Start Date:  

Completion Date:  

Description of Service  
Justification of Similar Size and 
Scope  

A:  Either may apply.  The reference must be able to demonstrate the contractor’s capability to 
perform the requirements of this RFP.  This is the person that has hands-on experience with the day-
to-day use of the contract, which is most likely the end client utilizing the contract vehicle. 
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Description of Amendment (Continued): 
 
MEEC IT Hardware RFP 972016 
Amendment 6 – Questions (Q) and Answers (A) 
 

94. Q:  Page 20, Section C, 1.9 Operable Peripherals/Adaptors – Would this be considered an additional 
service/configuration cost?  We could offer this added service.  It is per the customer’s request? 

A:  No, this is not considered an additional service/configuration cost.  This is a mandatory technical 
requirement. Under the heading of Section C 1.9 Operable Peripherals/Adaptors all software and/or 
necessary drivers related to peripherals and/or adaptors, and ordered at time of processor purchase, 
must be installed and operational prior to time of delivery. 

95. Q:  Page 23, Manufacturer’s Extended Warranty Service – Above this section it says warranty 
commences on delivery.  In this paragraph it states on acceptance.  Which statement is correct? 

A:  The “Base” Warranty begins upon delivery of equipment; whereas the manufacturer’s ‘extended’ 
warranty for equipment and services commences on acceptance of the equipment or services. 

96. Q:  Due to the revisions to pages 36-42 of RFP #972016, would MEEC/University of Maryland 
reissue a new technical response matrix? 

A:  Yes.  The updated Section C to the RFP is attached as Attachment C to the RFP.  The Revised 
Section C supersedes and replaces Section C in the original RFP and consists of changes to all of 
Section C resulting from the previously issued Amendments, including a revised 8.0 – Technical 
Proposal Response Submission Matrix.  Section J of the RFP is updated to add: 
Attachment C – Revised Section C – Specifications and Requirements [Microsoft Word File] 

97. Q:  Would University of Maryland MEEC IT accept a lesser coverage limit for General Liability, 
Automobile Liability and Excess Liability? 

A:  While vendors may submit exceptions taken to the RFP terms with their Proposal, it is noted, as 
per the RFP’s cover page, “Contractors are cautioned not to make changes to any of the terms and 
conditions in this solicitation.  Doing so may render a Contractor’s proposal unacceptable and subject 
to rejection.”  Changes to the required standard terms and conditions as stated in the RFP for award 
are not anticipated. 

98. Q:  Would University of Maryland MEEC IT be willing to review redline terms for Indemnification and 
Limitation of Liability? 

A:  See Q & A #97 above. 

99. Q:  Regarding section 1.3.4, evidence of approved reseller status, we would like to propose that only 
Letters of Authorization specific to this contract be accepted for categories 1-4.  This will ensure that 
all authorizations are current and that vendors have demonstrated their capabilities to the authorizing 
manufacturers while potentially minimizing the number of responses per product line the evaluation 
committee will have to review. 

A:  As per Section C. 1.3.4 (pg. 18) evidence is only required for Categories 1-4 and Category 5 
peripheral devices is excepted, that is, it is and exception in being excluded from the requirement. 
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100. Q:  For each product category 1-4 beginning on page 22 there is a requirement for “Manufacturers 
Extended Warranty Service” and “Manufacturers Extended Service Agreement.”  Both requirements 
appear to be nearly identical.  Can you elaborate on the difference between the two? 

A: Manufacturers Extended Warranty Service – refers to warranty of the equipment and its parts. 
Manufacturers Extended Service Agreement – refers to service in support of the equipment, for 
example services may include on-site service technician trouble shooting and maintenance 
services such as health checks or assessments. 

101. Q:  We’re looking for additional clarification around Q/A #19 from Amendment #3. As stated in that 
question, there are typically different discount levels associated with hardware vs. maintenance. 
However, there are often differences in the discount structure of various hardware categories within a 
manufacturer’s offering. Should those differences be expressed as a range of discount for all 
hardware from that manufacturer, or should we add a line for each hardware category with the 
minimum discount indicated for each? 

A:  See Q & A #80 (Amendment 5). 

102. Q:  Does this contract include “Hyper-Converged” (vendors like Nutanix, Dell EMC VXRail, etc) 
and/or “Converged” (VCE, etc) technology solutions?  If so, which category would these fall under?  I 
can provide a detailed description around hyper-converged and converged, if requested, but these 
solutions include storage, compute, and network into a single appliance. 

A:  Yes.  Brands should be proposed in the Category that is the best fit in meeting their primary 
function of the hardware.  See also Q & A # 24 and #51 (Amendment 3). 

103. Q:  How should we address different product classes, with different discount structures, within the 
same vendor portfolio? ie. EMC/Dell has a variety of storage solutions (VMAX, VNX, Unity, etc) and 
they all have different discount matrixes. 

A:  List the minimum discount with the option of additional discounting by product classes in the 
Value Added area.  See Q & A #80 (Amendment 5). 

104. Q:  On page 24 in the “Acceptable Data Storage Brands”, I noticed “Isolon” listed. I believe this is a 
typo and the appropriate technology is “Isilon”. I just wanted to ensure this was an accurate 
assumption. 

A:  Isolon was corrected to Isilon per Q & A # 5 (Amendment 1). 

105. Q:  Sections 7 requires certain information that we would not be able to provide such as point of 
contact information or contract dollar value of the contract because of the classified nature of the 
customer. If we do not provide all information request for the reference form would our proposal be 
compliant since this section is a mandatory requirement? 

A:  This information is mandatory.  There is no way to check a reference if a reference point of 
contact and contract information is not provided.  References are required for evaluation of past 
performance.   

106. Q:  Will there be a process for offeror’s to add additional brands that they do not offer currently but my 
offer down the road. (i.e company has the ability to sell brand X and few years later would like to add 
brand Y even though brand Y was on the original list of manufacturers when the contract was 
competed)? 
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A: See Q & A # 25 (Amendment 3).  

107. Q:  What is the criteria that would be used to evaluate to add in the write in brand? Also is 
background information required for brands that we would like to add? 

A:  Products should be of interest and value to the MEEC membership.  No other information is 
required. 

108. Q:  I would like to ask a follow up to a question that was asked at the pre-proposal conference 
regarding hyperconvergence.  What category does hyperconvergence fall under since this type of 
hardware falls under all three categories of Server, Storage, and Networking. 

A:  See Q & A #102 above and #24 and #51 (Amendment 3). 

109. Q:  If (i) Contractor is awarded a specific manufacturer for a specific group, (ii) a MEEC member requires 

support/maintenance for certain hardware that they already own, and (iii) that hardware can be sold to 
MEEC members based on Contractor's award, may Contractor sell that support/maintenance? (E.g. May 
Contractor sell UMD support/maintenance for a Dell server already owned by UMD, if Contractor has a Dell 
Group 3 award?) 

A:  Yes. 

110. Q:  If (i) the list price of a product is $1000, (ii) the Contractor's award guaranties a 10% discount, and 
(iii) a MEEC member institution purchases that product from the Contractor, how much does the end 
user pay the contractor including the MEEC surcharge?  (We believe the answer is $900, and the 
Contractor remits $4.50 to MEEC). 

A:  Your answer is correct, noting the “list” price in this example would be the vendor’s Standard 
Educational List Price.   

111. Q:  We respectfully request a 2-week extension to the due date. 

A:  As answered previously, the Proposal due date is not extended. 

112. Q:  Regarding insurance coverage requirements, will MEEC accept a $1m/$2m GL and $1M CSL 
auto with a $6M umbrella as equivalent to the RFP terms? 

A:  Yes, the required insurance minimum limits may be reached by means of an Umbrella or Excess 
Liability policy that provides coverage over the GL and Auto policies. 

113. Q:  In the Technical Proposal Response Submission Matrix; Section C, for Categories we are not 
proposing should we leave the VENDOR RESPONSE blank or insert “N/A?” Is this also the case for 
other sections where there is no response? 

A:  Either is acceptable where a blank will be evaluated as a no-bid for that Category. 

114. Q:  This question is to clarify submission details. In Section D. SUBMISSION OF PROPOSALS on 
page 8, the first paragraph states “The file format for the technical proposal is Adobe PDF. The file 
format for the financial proposal is Microsoft Excel.” Further down, item (4) states: “Separated in 
Technical and Financial Proposals in PDF document format.” Then, item (5) specifies that “Each PDF 
Proposal document file must be clearly labeled as follows”, then lists the Financial proposal is an .xls 
file. Can you confirm that we should submit the Technical Proposal in PDF and the Financial Proposal 
in .xls format? If the Financial proposal is to be submitted in .xls, should we then provide the required 
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Section G.5 Notices, required to be included in the Financial Volume, as a separate PDF file 
attachment in the Financial proposal email? 

A:  This is to confirm, the Technical Proposal is to be submitted in PDF format and the Financial 
Proposal (Pricing Form) needs to be submitted in Excel format.   
 
Item (4) on page 8 of the RFP is corrected to state: “Separated into Technical and Financial 
Proposals” 
 
Item (5) on page 8 of the RFP is corrected in the first line to state: “Each Proposal document file must 
be clearly labeled as follows:” 
 
The PDF technical proposal file needs to be submitted as one PDF file that includes all attachments 
noted in the Matrix Vendor Response.   

The Section G.5 Notices needs to be completed to provide your firm’s contact information and 
included in the Technical Proposal.   The Section G.5 Notice Requirement Item No. is added to the 
revised Section C 8.0 – Technical Proposal Response Submission Matrix. 

115. Q:  Where should we place pricing for the following:  In reference to (4.0 Highly Desirable Services/ 
Options pg. 31) Section 4.2 Design and Consulting- “to assist customers in long range planning, 
network design, infrastructure planning, etc. by providing a concise overview of up to 2 pages in 
length of their professional services roles”, on the document named Financial Proposal – Updated 
Pricing Form. 

A: Design and consulting may be pre-sales support in the context of 4.2.  Rates are not requested 
and should not be included.  (As per the Matrix 4.2 Response Checklist - Do not list any rates).  In the 
event a MEEC member requires billable design and consulting services in relation to a hardware 
order under resulting contracts, rates would need to be quoted as part of a response to the individual 
MEEC member’s TORP/quote request. 

116. Q:  Some of our Partners (Palo Alto, Juniper) provide different additional services, where can we 
highlight and explain in detail what additional services they provide for their IT Hardware? 

A:  Additional partner services are not requested under this RFP.  Responder’s should not be 
submitting information of additional partner services offerings.  If there is something that the vendor 
offers that is seen of value to MEEC members and is priced under a responder’s offerings, it could be 
included in the information submitted for Value Added Pricing in the Financial Proposal Pricing Form.   
Refer to Instructions #7 in the Pricing Form and previously answered questions on Value Added 
Pricing.     

117. Q:  Is an awarded Contactor able to name subcontractors under this contract? 

A:  See Q and A # 73 (Amendment 4).  To be clear, Contractors do not receive awards and then name 
subcontractors or resellers under their awarded contract.  Contracts (and/or POs) will be between 
MEEC participating institutions and the Contractors.  Contractors may use subcontractors and 
suppliers to provide hardware under the contract.  The MEEC Contractor will be responsible for all 
warranty requirements, service requirements, shipping, invoicing, and all other requirements under the 
contract.  Payments will be made to Contractors only (if we get an invoice from a subcontractor, the 
invoice will be rejected and returned). 

118. Q:  Is an awarded Contractor able to name Authorized Resellers under this contract? 

A:  No.  See Q & A #12 (Amendment 2). 
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119. Q:  Does the Collective Purchase Report Template need to be completed and returned as a part of 
our submission? 

A:  No.  This is a sample report template as per the Reporting Requirements 3.1. 

120. Q:  Section E- Inspection and Acceptance Terms, (pg. 44) Equipment and Installation (5th bullet) - Will 
the testing protocols be shared with the Contractor at the time of the TORFP? 

A:  This is at the discretion of the individual MEEC Member Institution/ordering entity. 

121. Q:  Should this sentence read “If the products were provided with the installation terms, the contractor 
is responsible for the installation of the replacement equipment as defined in the RFP”? 

Referring to this paragraph: 

Any warranty period for equipment and services will not commence until acceptance of the 
equipment or services by the requesting MEEC Member Institution.  All defective items must be 
replaced at no additional cost.  If the products were provided without the Installation terms, 
the contractor is responsible for the installation of the replacement equipment as 
defined in the RFP.  If the products were provided without installation, the contractor, at 
its option and at no additional cost, may provide on-site service or next-day drop ship 
replacements for the MEEC Member Institution to install. 

Manufacturer’s Extended Warranty Service” 

Category 1 – p. 23 
Category 2 - p. 25 
Category 3 - p. 27 
Category 4 - p. 29 

 
A:  Correct.  This is an error in the last paragraphs of both the Manufacturer’s Extended Warranty 
Service and the Manufacturer’s Extended Service Agreement descriptions for Categories 1-4. 

In Section 2.0 – CATEGORIES AND CATEGORY SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS, for Categories 1-4, 
under the Manufacturer’s Extended Warranty Service and the Manufacturer’s Extended Service 
Agreement descriptions (8 places), the sentences:  

“If the products were provided without the Installation terms, the contractor is responsible for the 
installation of the replacement equipment as defined in the RFP.”  

are deleted in entirety and replaced with the following sentence in each of the 8 places: 

“If the products were provided with the Installation terms, the contractor is responsible for the 
installation of the replacement equipment as defined in the RFP.” 

122. Q:  Will the University of Maryland and the Maryland Education Enterprise Consortium consider 
extending the date of the response in order for contractors to gather necessary manufacturer 
documentation and to provide most the complete response? 

A:  As answered previously, the submission date is not extended. 

123. Q:  Will exceptions to contract terms be allowed or reviewed?  If we have exceptions to certain 
contract terms can we submit as an attachment? 

A:  See Q & A # 97.   
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124. Q:  Will we need to provide Energy Star Compliance for every product from every brand we list as a 
part of our SELP? 

A:  No. 

125. Q:  Will the base warranty information for every product be required as a part of our response or only 
needed to produce upon request? 

A:  Upon request.  The Section C Response Matrix Priority Code for the Base Warranty is M/C which 
stands for Mandatory/Confirmation.  The Vendor Response in the Matrix must confirm the 
requirement is met. 

126. Q:  Do you plan to extend this RFP? 

A:  As answered previously, the submission date is not extended. 

127. Q:  Can we bid a range of discounts or should it be a fixed discount?  Many manufacturers give 
different discounts per product, even within a specific product line.  There is also no breakout for 
maintenance pricing, which is often at a different discount than the hardware.  How should we 
address this? 

A:  See Q & A #80 (Amendment 5) and Q & A # 19 (Amendment 3) adding maintenance & support to 
the Pricing Form. 

128. Q:  Please verify that there is NO requirement for a case study for Category 1. 

A:  No case study is required for Category 1. 

129. Q:  Do firewalls and security solutions fall in the Networking category (Category 4)? 

A:  Yes. 

130. Q:  Is there a minimum spend for the MEEC members to seek lease / lease-purchase financing? 

A:  No. 

131. Q:  RFP Reference: Financial Proposal - UMD-MEEC HW RFP 972016.xls - MEEC IT Hardware 
RFP Instructions, 5.  Enter the minimum percent (%) off of your firm's published or otherwise 
verifiable Standard Education List Pricing (SELP) in the cell for each Brand bid. 
 
Question: Is it permissible to enter a minimum discount range for Category #1 and Category # 5; as 
there are many different types of products with varying acceptable minimum discounts within 
Category #1 and Category #5? 

A:  See Q & A #80 (Amendment 5). 

132. Q:  RFP Reference: 2.0 – CATEGORIES AND CATEGORY SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS 
 
Question: You list HP as an acceptable brand, and Hewlett Packard (HP) is now 2 distinct 
companies; so are you defining HP as being inclusive of both HP Inc. (HPI) and Hewlett Packard 
Enterprise (HPE), when the accurate HP listing would be to have both HPI and HPE listed 
separately? 



8 

 

A:  Section C, Categories 2.1-2.5, the Acceptable Brands are modified to replace the HP listings as 
listed below.  This update is reflected in the Revised Section C – Specifications and Requirements 
[Microsoft Word File].  The Pricing Form has also been updated. 

Category 1 – Desktop, Laptop, and Portable Computers/ Tablets –HPI 
Category 2 – Data Storage Devices and Systems – HPE 
Category 3 – Server Class Hardware/Equipment and Virtual Computing – HPE 
Category 4 – Network Hardware – HPE 
Category 5 – Computer Hardware Peripherals – HPI & HPE 
 

133. Q:  RFP Reference: 4. IDIQ Contracts - The Contractor may sell any product that falls into the 
awarded Category (for example, desktop computers, or data storage devices) within the manufacturer 
or brand awarded. 
 
Question: Will you stipulate that this contract is for Commercial products only from the specified 
manufacturer or brand that fall into the Category, and that this contract is not open to Consumer 
products from the specified manufacturer or brand that fall into the Category? 

A:  No, as noted in the RFP, faculty, staff, and students are eligible to purchase off the contracts for 
personal use. 

134. Q:  The Acceptable Data Storage Devices and Systems (Category 2) and Network Hardware 
(Category 4) categories list Dell-EMC brands. While Dell did purchase EMC, the two brands have not 
been integrated to date. Will the University consider listing the brands separately at this time? 

A:  Section C, Categories 2.1-2.5, the Acceptable Brands are modified to include Dell and Dell-EMC 
brands as listed below.  This update is reflected in the Revised Section C – Specifications and 
Requirements [Microsoft Word File].  The Pricing Form has also been updated. 

Category 1 – Desktop, Laptop, and Portable Computers/ Tablets – Dell, Dell / Wyse 
Category 2 – Data Storage Devices and Systems – Dell, Dell - EMC 
Category 3 – Server Class Hardware/Equipment and Virtual Computing – Server - Dell 
Category 4 – Network Hardware – Dell, Dell - EMC 
Category 5 – Computer Hardware Peripherals – Dell 

135. Q:  Section 1.6, Compatibility: All peripherals and components configured and ordered with a system 
must be compatible with that system.  All components must be manufacturer approved, unless 
otherwise noted, and therefore, eligible for full manufacturer’s warranty.  Are you excluding the use of 
third party memory?  The memory manufacturer would have their own warranty separate from the 
system.  And, of course, this memory is compatible with the system and there can often be a 
significant cost savings. 

A:  Third party memory is not the norm, but it is not excluded.  It may be provided at the request of 
the MEEC member institution. 

136. Q:  Section: 1.13.1, Categories 1-4 Base Warranty Requirements: (g) Manufacturer’s warranty shall 
apply for all peripherals and accessories and for 1.13.2 Category 5 Base Warranty Requirements:  
For peripherals and accessories (categories 1-4) and Category 5 items, how long does the warranty 
need to be?  Onsite?  Or is whatever the manufacturer’s warranty covers sufficient? 

A:  To clarify, peripherals and accessories is Category 5, not Categories 1-4.  The Base Warranty 
Requirements for Categories 1-4 Base Warranty are listed in Section 1.13.1, and for Category 5 they 
are listed in Section 1.13.2.  See Section 1.13.1 for what is required in the minimum 3 year on site 
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warranty for Categories 1-4.  See Section 1.13.2 for Category 5 base warranty requirements where 
the term is not specified - it is set to what is offered by the manufacturer’s base warranty.    

137. Q:  On page 9, Section A-2 Subsection A Paragraph 6, where the categories are defined, Category 3 
talks about “Virtual Computing system hardware.”  Please specify in more detail what that refers to 
exactly: Virtual Host servers?  Virtual desktop hosts?  Further in that paragraph, it talks about a 
“virtual computing environment, including hybrid models.”  What is meant by “hybrid models?”  
Whether a server is a physical host or a virtual host, it’s still a server, and it’s not clear why there is a 
distinction between a server and “Virtual Computing system hardware,” and also not clear why the 
word “hybrid” is used, as hybrid is most often used when discussing cloud solutions. 

A:  In the previous RFP, server hardware and computer virtualization were separate Categories and 
they were merged for this RFP.  The category descriptions are general to provide a framework for a 
response and to not limit the response to a point in time, so that new technologies can be 
incorporated into that category.  The term Hybrid is used to capture new and emerging technologies 
including on premises and off premises solutions. 

138. Q:  On page 10, Section A-2 Subsection A Paragraph 7, Financing and Leasing: we offer leasing but 
use a 3rd party.  Can we answer this question in the affirmative that we offer financing?  In terms of 
stipulating leasing terms, this seems too open ended, as terms depend on the length of the lease (3-
yrs, 4-yrs, etc.) and the prevailing rates, which are tied to interest rates, out of anyone’s control.  How 
should we address the terms specifically? 

A:  Third party is acceptable.  The lease terms would be negotiated directly with the Member 
Institution for order placement. 

139. Q:  Section 2.3 Category 4- One of the brands is Pulse Products. Is this Pulse Secure?  Pulse 
Secure provides a consolidated offering for access control, SSL VPN, and mobile device security. 

A:  Pulse Secure is correct.  This update is made as applicable in Section C for Category 4 and to the 
Pricing Form. 

140. Q:  On average, how much spend has been generated each year for this MEEC Hardware agreement 
since 2012 and what's anticipated spend for the next 3 years of the renewal period? 

A:  The average spend per year has been approximately $100,000,000.  It is estimated that the 
spend will remain consistent and therefore the anticipated spend for the next 3 years is estimated to 
be $300,000,000. 

In Section A-2 – Background/ Purpose, Instructions, Conditions and Notices to Contractors, 5. 
Contracts Use, 3rd paragraph (pg. 4), the sentence: 

“It is estimated that the resulting contract(s) have the potential of expenditures in excess of $650 
million over a full, nine-year contract life.” 

Is deleted in entirety and replaced with the following sentence: 

“It is estimated that the resulting contract(s) have the potential of expenditures in excess of $900 
million over a full, nine-year contract life.” 

141. Q:  What's the process for MEEC members to seek leasing / lease-purchasing financing? 
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A:  The MEEC Institution may request leasing as needed under the awarded Contract.  A process 
definition of the individual Member Institution is not needed for Proposal submission.  Depending on 
the scope, this could be requested through a TORP. 

142. Q:  Can the vendor arrange for leasing / lease-purchase financing through a 3rd party specialized 
lessor? 

A:  Yes. 

143. Q:  Will MEEC members accept the lease / lease-purchase financing contract language of the vendor 
/ lessor OR is there already an approved MEEC lease / lease-purchase financing contract available 
for review? 

A:  There is no MEEC lease.  A lease would be directly between the vendor/lessor and the Member 
Institution that makes a request.   

144. Q:  What terms (years, months) should the lease / lease-purchase financing be for - 3 years & 5 
years, for example? 

A:  A three (3) year term can be presented for evaluation.  MEEC members may require different 
terms based on the Member Institution’s needs. 

145. Q:  What disposition services have the MEEC members used during the last contract? 

A:  MEEC does not capture this information. 

146. Q:  Can disposition services be outlined within the lease / lease-purchase financing response? 

A:  Yes.  This would be worked out directly with the individual MEEC institution. 

147. Q:  Our Computer Peripheral catalog is vast in products that meet your criteria. Please explain organize by 

manufacturer? 

A:  If a vendor offers peripherals by multiple manufacturers, they may organize by manufacturer.  See 
the Pricing Form tab for Category 5 that includes peripheral manufacturers.   

148. Q:  SELP: Contractor’s published or otherwise verifiable Standard Educational List Pricing.  Most 

manufacturers do not have Standard Education List pricing.  Will MEEC take alternative options? 

A:  No.  If a vendor’s manufacturer list price - what is often referred to as “MSRP” - is the same price 
that is offered as their standard list price for education, then they need to use their MSRP as their 
SELP in preparing the Pricing Form, and state in their Financial Proposal their SELP is MSRP 
equivalent. 

149. Q:  If we cannot provide Asset Disposal due to the terms and conditions, can we waive that requirement? 

A:  Effectively yes as Section C, 4.5 Disposal Services, is not a Mandatory requirement.   
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150. Q:  Section 1.3.4 - Please clarify if it is mandatory to have a letter or certificate for Category 5 peripherals? 

A:  See Q & A # 99 above, Category 5 peripheral devices is excepted (excluded) from the 
requirement.  In 1.3.4 of Section C, the letter, certificate or other authorization as a reseller 
documentation requirement does NOT apply to Category 5 – Computer Hardware Peripherals. 

151. Q:  Bid document is unclear in this statement (Category 5 peripheral devices is expected). 

A:  The word is excepted and not expected. 

152. Q:  Given the multiple LOTS offering, will the University extend the Proposal due date by at least one 

week? 

A:  As noted previously, the due date is not extended. 

153. Q:  Part 1, Section A-2, A-11(Price Changes). Will Contractor be able to raise prices in the event of serious 

industry-wide shortages in materials or resources or significant increases in the cost of manufacturing, or 
other factors outside Contractor’s reasonable control? 

A:  In the event of such catastrophic factors such as these described, a vendor would need to appeal 
to the procurement officer supporting the MEEC IT HW Contract. 

154. Q:  Notwithstanding Part 1, Section A-2, I (Alternate Proposals) and Part 1, Section A-2, S (Formation of 

Contract with Successful Contractor), will the University agree to consider and negotiate exceptions and 
requested additions to the terms and conditions in the RFP? If so, what is the procedure for Responder to 
take exceptions or request additions? 

A:  See Q & A #97 above.  USM is under the State of Maryland.  The RFP has standard (required) 
terms and conditions that include State of Maryland mandatory terms.  The University may consider 
exceptions taken to the RFP’s terms and conditions, however exception submissions are 
discouraged.  A vendor’s exceptions taken may be submitted as an attachment in the Technical 
Proposal. 

155. Q:  If a Responder submits exceptions/additions to terms and conditions of the RFP that are not accepted 

by the University, can the University still issue an award to that Responder and require such Responder to 
enter into the Agreement without the University either accepting Responder’s exceptions/additions or 
coming to a negotiated agreement with the Responder as to the exceptions/additions? 

A:  No, that is not the intention.  In the event a vendor is unwilling to accept the RFP terms, and 
mutually agreed to terms cannot be reached, the vendor would not be awarded a Contract. 

156. Q:  If a Responder submits exceptions/additions to terms and conditions of the RFP that are not accepted 

by the University, will the University allow Responder the option to withdraw its request for 
exceptions/additions and still be considered for an award? 

A:  Yes. 

157. Q:  If a Responder submits exceptions/additions to terms and conditions of the RFP that are not accepted 

by the University, will Responder’s Proposal be deemed rejected and Responder not eligible for an award? 

A:  See Qs & As # 150 & 151 in this Amendment 5. 
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158. Q:  Do all purchases under the resulting contract require a TORP? 

A:  No.  Secondary competition via a TORP may be requested by MEEC Member Institutions but is 
not required, although is recommended on large dollar orders to receive the very best pricing.  The 
higher the estimated dollar value of a purchase, the greater the likelihood a TORP may be issued. 

159. Q:  Can a purchasing entity issue a Task Order or a purchase order for equipment or services under this 

contract without first issuing a TORP? 

A:  Yes.  See Q & A #154 above. 

160. Q:  Will an awarded Contractor have an opportunity to negotiate, with the MEEC member institution 

purchasing entity, modifications or additions to the contract terms before accepting a purchase order or 
task order that wasn’t part of a TORP if such negotiated terms are allowed by the purchasing entity (not 
including the scope of what goods and services can be sold under the contract or the 0.5% surcharge to 
MEEC)? 

A:  No.  A MEEC IT HW Contract will be awarded to each of the selected vendors.  The contract 
cannot be modified by MEEC Member Institutions; however, terms may be added specific to a TORP, 
SOW, or Member Institution’s PO. 

161. Q:  Is a Contractor required to bid every TORP? 

A:  No. 

162. Q:  Is a Contractor required to accept a task order or purchase order that is not the result of a TORP from 

a MEEC member institution purchasing entity if the purchasing entity and Contractor cannot agree on 
modified or added negotiated terms? 

A:  No.  However, it is not envisioned that typical orders would require negotiations for MEEC 
Member Institutions to place orders under the Contract.  Rather, special negotiations would only be 
seen as potentially needed for adding terms given the scope of a TORP. 

163. Q:  Proposer understands the importance of acceptance to the University and the MEEC members. 

Acceptance also has a critical impact on when a Contractor can recognize revenue and, under the 
contract, when the warranty and service periods begin. Will the University agree to add language that 
would deem acceptance if the purchasing entity does not notify the Contractor within 15 days of delivery of 
a nonconformance to the specifications? 

A:  No.  Section E – Inspection and Acceptance Terms (pg. 44) does not include details such as days 
that may be required for an acceptance timeframe.  Acceptance and installation timeframe 
requirements would need to be specified by the specific Member Institution’s needs and agreed to 
prior to order placement. 

164. Q:  Will the University agree that any orders fulfilled for overseas (outside the USA) shipment will be 

contingent upon :  (a) Proposer having an affiliate in the overseas region where it is being shipped, (b) 
such Proposer affiliate agreeing to accept the order and the contract terms and being deemed “Proposer” 
under the contract (c) mutually agreed upon modifications or additions to the contract between the 
Proposer Affiliate and the purchasing MEEC Institution that either of the parties deem necessary for 
Proposer Affiliate to accept the order 

A:  No, the University cannot make this contingency on behalf of MEEC Member Institutions that 
require overseas shipment.  Again, terms would need to specified and agreed to by the Member 
Institutions prior to order placement. 
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165. Q:  Under Part II, Section I – Contract Clauses, 22. Termination for Convenience (pg. 55), will the 

University agree to provide advance written notice of 30 days, or in the alternative some other reasonable 
notice period? 

A:  No.  This Termination for Convenience clause is a State of Maryland required term. 

166. Q:  Under Section 23 of Part II, (Termination of Default), will the University agree to extend the cure period 

in subsection (b) from 10 days to 30 days? 

A:  No.  This Termination for Default clause is a State of Maryland required term. 

167. Q:  Will the University agree that any payment by the University or a MEEC member by credit card needs 

to be made at the time of order? 

A:  No.  The University’s P-card is a payment method, not a purchasing method.  P-card may be used 
to pay invoices for orders that are under $5,000. 

168. Q:  Are the two (2) three (3) year renewal options subject to both parties agreeing to the renewal? 

A:  Yes.  The renewal options will be exercised via a Contract Modification that must be signed by 
both the Contractor and the Procurement Office.  It is anticipated that Contractors in good standing 
will renew their MEEC IT HW contracts to continue service to MEEC Member Institutions over the full 
nine (9) year life of the Contract. 
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